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Appendix A:

Correspondence Establishing Carbon-lk
Sample Collection Program
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HumBLE O1L & REFINING COMPANY
EXPLORATION DEPARTMENT
GEOLOGIC, LEASE & SCOUTING DIVISION

HousTon 1,TExas

MORGAN J. DAVlS
VICE-PRESIDENT .

W. A MALEY March 18 P 1955
J. BEN CARSEV

H. N_FISK
CHIEF. GEOLOGIC RESEARCH

E BELL
o HEAD PRODUCTION GEOLDGII‘I’

LER
E DHEESBSTAET & EVI"— BSECTION

FRANSEN
D.S, HIEF SCOUT

Brig. Gen. John R. Hardin
President '
Mississippi River comnission
P. 0. Box 80

Vicksburg, Mississippi

Dear General Hardin:

At our meeting last week I inquired if it might be possible for
me to cobtain from the U. S. Engineers cored samples of wood and shells re-
covered from borings drilled in various parts of the Mississippi alluvial
valley. Such deposits recovered from the river's alluvium and its deltaic
deposits can now be accurately dated by radiocarbon analysis. Our Company
has in operation equipment of advanced design which will permit age determi-
nation of material as old as 30,000 years, or perhaps slightly older. You
will recall that several samples obtained in connection with the investiga-
tion of the Atchafalaya River problem have yielded interesting results, and
the dates have been published in the report. Although these samples are
all from the Atchafalaya Basin and Mississippl delta, I am sure that equally
g00d wood samples can be obtained from borings in the Vicksburg and Memphis
districts.

Dating the Mississippi Valley deposits should provide information
of general importance and interest to geologists. It may also yleld useful
data for the Engineers, such as a basis for estimating more accurately the
rate of Mississippi River migration, the speed with which past river diver-
sions have been effected, the rate of channel deterioration, etc. Because
the U. S. Engineers' borings are accurately located and good logs of them
are made, both by the field parties and by personnel of the various Soil
Sections, cored samples offer an exceptional opportunity to obtain accurate
dates.

The minimum size of either wood or shell samples required for
Carbon 1h analysis is approximately one-eighth of a pound. A slightly larger
gquantity is needed if the woody material is peat. Of course, it would be
highly desirable to obtain samples mmch larger than the minimum size; large
samples permit more accurate analysis and also reruns.

I will be greatly pleased if arrangements can be made whereby I
would be informed or sent such cored samples of wood and shell which are of
sultable size for analysis. It may be that excavations such as those for
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canals, lock sites, or for the outflow channel of the 0ld River control
structure will uncover logs, stumps, or shell beds which would meet our
needs as well or better than samples from cores. If so, I would be pleased
if I could be informed of such occurrences.

I appreciated the opportunity to discuss the offshore matter with
you. I feel now that I have a much clearer concept of the part which the
Engineers can take in regulating offshore activities.

Sincerely yours,

0 Lo

H. N. Fisk

"HNF':bre
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WAR DEPARTMENT

ADDRESS REPLY TO: _ CORPS OF ENGINEERS
PRESIDENT MISSISSIPPI RIVER COMMISSION OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT
CORPS OF ENGINEERS
P. O. BOX 80, MISSISSIPPI RIVER COMMISSION

© VICKSBURG, MISSISSIPPI VICKSBURG, MISSISSIPPI

1EFER TO FILE NO.

SUBJECT: Samples of Wood or Shells for Radio-carben Analysis

TOs District Engineer, Memphis District, CE, Memphis, Temn.
District Engineer, Vicksburg Distriot, CE, Vicksburg, Mias,
District Engineer, New Orleans Distriet, CE, New Orleans, la,
(COPY TO EACH)

1. With the view of securing wood or shell samples for radioe
carbon analysis from borings er excavations within the alluvial valley
in your district; a csopy of a letter dated 18 March 1955, from Dr. H. N.
Fisk to General Hardin, is inclosed.

2. The fisld personnel in your district vho are engaged on bexrings,
excavations or exploratory pits, and who might encounter wood or shell
naterial, should be directed to preserve s suitable sample and furnish
{t to this offics through channsls,

3. Vood samples should be 2 ocunces or more in size. The location
and the depth of the sarple below the ground surface are of paramount
¢. This information should be carefully logged and tranamitied
with the material. '

4. Samples should be placed in an air tight container. A4 glass jar
with a rubber seal will be suitable. Samples sent to this office will be
reshipped to Dr, H., N. Fisk, of the Humble 0il Co.

5. It is not ocontemplated that many samples of sufficient size will
be encountered in bore holes. However, these samples will perhaps be the
most important for radio-csrbon analysis. In excavations, s large amount of
wood or shell material may be encountered that would be suitable for testing.
In such cases, a small sample at various lsvels in the excavation will be
sufficient for analysis.

' 6. The analysie of the samples will be done free of charge by the
Bumble 011 Co. Each analysis will cost the o0il company about $1,500.
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7. It is not contemplated thet any additional expenditures will
be required by your office to coliect these samples except for transe
portetion and handling charges.

8. The results of the analyses will be of great importance to
geologists in determining the age and formation of the Mississippi Alluvial
Valley and will strengthen the hypothesis on which the reports of the
geologloal information has been based,

BY OHDER (F THE PRESIDENT:

1 Inel C. Fo MIUICAIM
Cy of ltxr 18 Mar 55 Colonel, CE
Secretary, Mississippi River
Cormission






